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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Welcome to the

          3  New York City Council's Committee on Contracts

          4  hearing regarding Proposed Intro 521- A. Today, we

          5  are going to be discussing Intro 521- A as well as

          6  the law that it would amend which is Local Law 35,

          7  which is codified of Section 312A of the New York

          8  City Charter. Local Law 35 which became law in 1994,

          9  was enacted to ensure that an agency's decision to

         10  displace City workers by contracting out their jobs

         11  is based on what is in the best interest of the City

         12  of New York; not just an attempt to needlessly

         13  remove unionized workers. The law is also meant to

         14  allow the unionized workers a chance to compete for

         15  the work that the agency is proposing to outsource.

         16  Indeed, Local Law 35 gives City workers an edge in

         17  the process.

         18                 Unfortunately, it has been suggested

         19  that Local Law 35 has not lived up to its promise of

         20  protecting City workers from needless displacement.

         21  Today, along with Intro 521- A, we will be

         22  discussing perceived weaknesses and strengths in

         23  Local Law 35 and exploring ways in which to make it

         24  stronger.

         25                 Before I begin, I'd like to introduce
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          2  my colleague, Joe Addabbo, from Queens and the staff

          3  of the Contracts Committee, Robert Newman, our

          4  Counsel and Regina Poreda, the Finance Director.

          5  These are the two people I depend on. Also, Dr.

          6  Kendall Stewart and John Liu will be joining us

          7  shortly as members of the Committee. What I would

          8  like to do is to first call Marla Simpson who is the

          9  Director of the Mayor's Office of Contracts to come

         10  forward and to give her testimony concerning this

         11  particular subject. Good afternoon, Marla, and

         12  welcome again to our Contracts Committee.

         13                 MS. SIMPSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         14  and Happy New Year.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: Good afternoon to you

         17  and your fellow members. I'd like to thank you for

         18  the opportunity to appear here to discuss Intro 521-

         19  A and my testimony does say 521, but you may assume

         20  that it applies similarly to 521- A.

         21                 As you know, from the outset of Mayor

         22  Bloomberg's Administration, we've worked to

         23  streamline procurement, reform, oversight and

         24  administration and make our process more transparent

         25  for vendors and for our partners in government as
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          2  well as the public at large. Last summer as you

          3  know, the Mayor and Council collaborated on a broad

          4  package of reforms, several of which specifically

          5  addressed disclosure and transparency. Just to recap

          6  Local Law 11, requires procurement notices and the

          7  complete text of RFPs to be posted electronically. Local

          8  Law 13 requires Human Services agencies to publish a

          9  Concept Report prior to any new or substantially

         10  restructured Human Services program RFP. This being

         11  a requirement that's aimed at improving our dialogue

         12  and identifying problems early enough in the

         13  planning stage so that we can remedy them. Local Law

         14  24 is designed to improve timeliness and

         15  accountability in the Human Services sector, by

         16  codifying the annual plan format that we piloted

         17  administratively.

         18                 In addition to these measures, all of

         19  which promote the goal of public access to

         20  procurement information, we recognize that the City

         21  Council and the members of this Committee also play

         22  a key oversight role and we work together with you

         23  to ensure that our procurement process remains open,

         24  fair, and competitive. For this reason, we do not

         25  oppose Intro 521 proposed inclusion of the City
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          2  Council in the reporting requirement set forth in

          3  Section 312 of the Charter. That section states that

          4  if a potential contract will result in the

          5  displacement of any City employee, before soliciting

          6  for that services contract, the agency must first

          7  determine the costs incurred and the benefits

          8  derived from having the service performed by City

          9  employees, consistent with the scope and

         10  specifications intended for the solicitation.

         11                 As originally enacted, Section 312

         12  requires the agency to forward that analysis to the

         13  Comptroller when the invitation for bid or request

         14  for proposal is released and then to the Council

         15  only after the bids and proposals are received. The

         16  information that's contained in the analysis is

         17  quite sensitive: Were it to be imprudently

         18  disclosed, that disclosure could directly influence

         19  the outcome of the solicitation, particularly the

         20  price proposals the City would receive from

         21  outsiders. The Comptroller's role as the repository

         22  for that analysis is consistent with the office's

         23  role in registration and procurement generally.

         24                 Agencies often supply the Comptroller

         25  with other types of sensitive information about the
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          2  competitive process prior to registration;

          3  information that is not typically released to the

          4  public until after registration. Thus, the

          5  Comptroller exercises its oversight under a

          6  statutory scheme that allows the City to preserve

          7  the confidential character of the cost analysis

          8  information at issue here during the critical early

          9  stages of procurement. We believe that it is

         10  appropriate for the Council as well to continue to

         11  preserve that confidentiality as you fashion an

         12  independent oversight role through the enactment of

         13  Intro 521- A.

         14                 The New York State Freedom of

         15  Information Law recognizes that, under limited

         16  circumstances, government agencies which here would

         17  include the procuring agency and all of the

         18  oversights, including you the Council, are permitted

         19  to withhold sensitive information from public

         20  disclosure. For example, agencies may deny access to

         21  records or portions of records that if disclosed

         22  would impair present or imminent contract awards or

         23  collective bargaining negotiations. Government

         24  agencies may also deny access to inter- agency or

         25  intra- agency materials that have not yet become
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          2  final agency determinations. The analysis required

          3  by Section 312 may be withheld under either of these

          4  exceptions and therefore, as a matter of law, does

          5  not have to be disclosed during the pre-

          6  solicitation or solicitation phases of a

          7  procurement, while their release could impair the

          8  City's effort to obtain the best price for the

          9  services it needs.

         10                 In sum, we do not oppose the

         11  Council's effort to strengthen its oversight of

         12  procurement involving the potential displacement of

         13  City employees by requiring agencies to submit their

         14  pre- solicitation cost analyses to the Council at

         15  the time that bids or requests for proposals are

         16  released. We know that you share our goal of

         17  preserving and encouraging full and fair

         18  competition. We thus fully anticipate that you will

         19  work with us to preserve the non- public character

         20  of the information during the early stages of

         21  procurement, prior to and during solicitation. Thank

         22  you. I'm available to answer any questions that you

         23  might have.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         25  Council Member Addabbo, do you have any questions?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair. Thank you very much for your time and

          4  testimony today. With Local Law 35, do we have a

          5  track record -- I know it was enacted in 1994.

          6  Correct?

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: I believe so. I wasn't

          8  here then. But I'm not positive of the date.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Do we know

         10  how many times that it actually preventing a

         11  contract from, I guess maybe a procurement cause or

         12  did displace a City employee? Do we know the

         13  statistics?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: It's hard to answer that

         15  in the abstract. I think the presence of the law in

         16  the Charter has a significant effect causing

         17  agencies to weigh the benefits and/or obstacles in

         18  this process and it is typical for agencies that are

         19  confronted with closed questions to decide not to

         20  move forward with procurements that would cause

         21  displacement. For example, in the current

         22  Administration, I believe there has only been two.

         23  Despite the very serious and substantial budget

         24  crisis that face the Administration, at the outset,

         25  in only two instances thus far have agencies made a

                                                            10

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  decision to move forward with a contract that had a

          3  displacement consequence. While neither of those has

          4  become a final contract award, I can't say that the

          5  process of going through it will discourage either

          6  of those two from proceeding. That remains to be

          7  seen. But certainly, all of the other agencies who

          8  have done procurements and who have looked for ways

          9  to close their budget gap, have not chosen to do the

         10  kind of procurement that would cause displacement.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: A follow- up

         12  question, as I Chair the Labor Committee and of the

         13  City Council, I'm very concerned obviously about the

         14  role our workforce plays in the City and obvious

         15  stability of their jobs here. To supplement 521- A,

         16  would there need to be a different system of

         17  tracking how Local Law, is it 35, plays a part in

         18  protecting these City employees and their jobs? Do

         19  we need to find a different way to track whether,

         20  again, procurement of contracts does displace a City

         21  worker?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know that

         23  tracking is the problem. We would be happy to work

         24  with this Committee or the Council on any additional

         25  tracking information from the records that we have.
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          2  As I think I testified on an earlier occasion, this

          3  is an area where every time a contract comes through

          4  our office for oversight when the agency is

          5  identifying that it will not have a displacement

          6  effect, that is something that my staff looks for.

          7  An agency in a situation where we think there might

          8  be that kind of issue will have to defend itself to

          9  the oversight agencies to make sure that they

         10  haven't made an error on that. It's an area where we

         11  do exercise vigilance.

         12                 In terms of the types of issues that

         13  have been brought to my attention either by members

         14  of the Council or by advocates on the outside, have

         15  tended to be privatization initiatives that occurred

         16  long before the law was adopted. So for example,

         17  there are circumstances where services have been

         18  provided on a contract basis for many years and in

         19  some cases, decades. And there may be a belief by

         20  advocates that those are services that could be

         21  provided directly by City employees. But the renewal

         22  of a contract that has been in the private sector

         23  for many years doesn't trigger a displacement

         24  analysis because obviously this placement occurred a

         25  very long time ago.

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 Again, I don't think it's a tracking

          3  issue particularly. I think it's a question of in a

          4  way the law has had the success aimed for by

          5  discouraging agencies from doing those types of

          6  contracts going forward. It's a very rare instance

          7  where the agency goes through the exercise of

          8  thinking about it's budget, coming up with a

          9  privatization initiative that would result in a new

         10  displacement finding and then proceeding to do that

         11  cost benefit analysis. It's very, very seldom that

         12  the agency finds that a worthwhile thing to do.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Lastly, Ms.

         14  Simpson, a question is, is your office currently

         15  sufficiently staffed to implement Intro 521- A?

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: Absolutely. We do check

         17  this issue. Again, as I just indicated, it's not an

         18  issue that we need to look at for renewals and

         19  extensions of existing programs. But whenever we see

         20  a new program, a new procurement and it is something

         21  that we look at closely. It is something that we

         22  speak to ECHO's (phonetic) about. We've done

         23  presentations on this issue and ECHO meetings since

         24  I've been there. It is something that we cover in

         25  our policy directives. It's definitely something
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          2  that we know everyone is vigilantly looking for. I

          3  don't anticipate a staffing issue related to this

          4  enforcement.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Ms. Simpson,

          6  thank you very much again for your time and

          7  testimony. I just request of the Chair that I be

          8  added as a co- sponsor to Intro 521- A. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         10  Council Member Addabbo. Council Member Stewart,

         11  questions or comments?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I don't have

         13  any questions at this time. But later on, I may.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Ms.

         15  Simpson, in responding to Council Member Addabbo, I

         16  think you alluded to or maybe I quite didn't hear

         17  you because I was doing some other things while

         18  listening at the same time. Did you say that there

         19  were, I believe two contracts that may have gone

         20  through this process? Did I hear you say that?

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: Two that are in the

         22  pipeline now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That are in the

         24  pipeline now?

         25                 MS. SIMPSON: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I think you were

          3  discussing the whole tracking. Does your office

          4  track whether or not notification is sent to the

          5  Comptroller's office concerning in reference to

          6  Local Law 35?

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: We are suppose to and

          8  that is something my staff has been reminded about

          9  when we look at the procedural requisites. There is

         10  an occasion that I'm aware of where an error was

         11  made by an agency. But it's not because we're not

         12  suppose to be looking for it. We are.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because I make

         14  the assumption since an agency under Local Law 35,

         15  if they were moving forward with a contract pursuant

         16  to Local Law 35, since they would send under the

         17  current law to the Comptroller's Office, I would

         18  assume that they would send one to the Mayor's

         19  Office of Contracts as an oversight also.

         20                 MS. SIMPSON: We don't tend to get

         21  copies of documents like that unless we request

         22  them. But the process of signing off on the

         23  procurement which we do in many instances at the

         24  planning stage through the signing on the so- called

         25  PSR form and in many instances at the pre-
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          2  registration phase when we sign the certification of

          3  procedural requisites. It is an item that's tracked

          4  on that form looking for compliance with that

          5  provision and the analyst are directed to determine

          6  from the agencies that those records are there and

          7  that the agency can document what it did. If an

          8  issue arises as I think one did where an agency

          9  failed to send a notice in a timely manner, then we

         10  would take a look at the document and look a little

         11  further at what happened. But typically, what we're

         12  trying to determine is that they follow the

         13  procedure, not the necessarily the substance of what

         14  they did.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have any

         16  idea as to how many contracts are let per fiscal

         17  year pursuant to Local Law 35? Do you have any guess

         18  amount?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: Very few. I mean, again

         20  are you saying in terms of where a displacement

         21  finding is made? I think the current volume that we

         22  have of one or two a year is probably typical where

         23  the displacement finding is made. Obviously, the law

         24  applies in terms of having to analyze and be certain

         25  that there isn't the displacement effect to
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          2  thousands of contracts. But the instance where the

          3  agency finds a potential displacement and decides to

          4  proceed is very rare.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I know under

          6  Local Law 35 there is where I believe no

          7  displacement of workers is going to take place as a

          8  result of contracting out. An agency must certify of

          9  such in the solicitation. Is that correct?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: That's correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Am I

         12  understanding that there are very few of those or

         13  there are a lot of those?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: There is a lot where

         15  there is no displacement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So for

         17  example, do you think that agencies, if I or

         18  somebody else go to an agency and say, HRA, can you

         19  please tell us how many contracts have been let

         20  under Local Law 35 where workers were displaced

         21  and/or the agency had certified there was no

         22  displacement, do you think that they would have that

         23  information readily available?

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know about

         25  readily available. I'm sure we could work with you
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          2  to come up with counts. I don't know that there is a

          3  document that would have that. You've sort of

          4  looking for a standard paragraph that would be in

          5  many, many documents. I think if we wanted to

          6  approach it, it would be better to target by

          7  particular kinds of contracts. Let me give an

          8  example. I think it's widely known certainly at the

          9  Council and in the City agencies that a large

         10  majority of the human services portfolio that the

         11  City now operates with has, I won't say always been

         12  contracted out, but certainly has been contracted

         13  out for decades. We're not talking about anything

         14  that was recent, when you're talking about most of

         15  the funding that goes to community based

         16  organizations. Every time those contracts come up

         17  for renewal, every time those programs RFPs are

         18  redone to refresh competition, every time those

         19  contracts turn over there is going to be one of

         20  these findings. But it hasn't been controversial.

         21                 The situation that Homeless Services

         22  is in with one of the ones that is in the pipeline

         23  now where you're taking a facility that has been

         24  operated by City workers and contemplating changing

         25  that facility to a contract facility. That's quite
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          2  rare. It's easy to count those up because there are

          3  so few. If you turn that on the inverse and ask a

          4  human service agency to tell you how many contracts

          5  it has where no displacement has been found, it's

          6  kind of the equivalent of asking them to describe

          7  their entire contract portfolio.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm not asking

          9  for that. I'm just curious. Does anyone, to your

         10  knowledge, review bids documents for services to

         11  ensure that certifications are included when they

         12  are suppose to be? Does anyone have that

         13  responsibility?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, the bids do not

         15  come into our oversight world. But they are looked

         16  by the Law Department in terms of the form.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: To make sure

         18  everything was done so forth and so on?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, it's our

         20  understanding that the issue and the issue is

         21  certainly reviewed at the agency, at the ECHO level

         22   --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: ECHO level, yes.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: -- In keeping with the

         25  requirements where the agency has had to make
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          2  certifications. I would be happy to look at any

          3  particular case if you believe that oversight has

          4  missed something. But that hasn't come up. Again,

          5  we're available to investigate any complaints. When

          6  I say that my office doesn't get those as a routine

          7  oversight matter, that's not to say that in a

          8  particular situation where a bid is troublesome or a

          9  bid is raising questions, we wouldn't exercise

         10  oversight. We do that on a variety of issues all the

         11  time. It hasn't come up on this issue. But if

         12  someone brought one to our attention, we would

         13  certainly follow up.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Does

         15  anyone review the agency determinations that there

         16  will be no displacement of workers? Does anyone

         17  review that determination that there will be no

         18  displacement of workers? If so, who does that?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, within the

         20  agency, I'm sure that the appropriate levels of

         21  authority are looking at often depending on dollar

         22  value or whatever. Something like this is so unusual

         23  that it's highly likely that the agencies looked at

         24  it at the highest levels.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It's probably
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          2  done like Assistant Commissioner or Associate

          3  Commissioner.

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: One would assume. Again,

          5  it's only going to be an issue that will require a

          6  lot of thinking --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: -- When you're talking

          9  about a new program. If it's just renewing or

         10  restarting a program that's been in effect for

         11  several decades, nobody is going to be thinking

         12  about this issue and rightly so. When a contract

         13  comes through our office as new RFPs typically do,

         14  if a non- displacement finding is made and the

         15  circumstances were I or my deputy's think that's

         16  questionable, then certainly that's the kind of

         17  thing that an analyst would be asked to follow up on

         18  and be sure Sometimes if we see news coverage or

         19  just controversy swirling about a particular

         20  procurement, we will look at any issue that a

         21  complainant might be raising. Because we would

         22  rather find that issue early in the planning process

         23  rather than at the last minute. Again, in the time

         24  that I've been there, we have not found an error on

         25  that issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What about the

          3  unions involved? Do you think that the appropriate

          4  unions should be notified of all solicitation for

          5  services that include this certification process?

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, I don't see the

          7  reason why we would be making a notification when

          8  the service, senior centers or youth programs and

          9  many of these programs that have been contracted out

         10  as long as anyone can remember.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What about new

         12  programs? What about new solicitations?

         13                 MS. SIMPSON: With a new program

         14  issue, when a finding is being made that it will not

         15  displace workers, generally I think you're talking

         16  about something that's a high enough profile that

         17  it's something the vendor community and the public

         18  are aware of. And if a question were raised by the

         19  union, then I'm sure the City would engage in a

         20  discussion. Again, this is highly sensitive

         21  sometimes once you get over into the cost issue. I

         22  want to steer a little bit away from that. But if

         23  you're talking about the fact that something is

         24  going to have or is not going to have a displacement

         25  effect, again the unions are built into the process
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          2  at a point where I think in the original structure

          3  of the statute, it was expected that they could most

          4  effectively participate which is to say that they

          5  would compete for the contract. I don't know in a

          6  situation where there is not going to be

          7  displacement what the purpose of the notice would

          8  be.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I know

         10  that from my labor experience, many contracts have

         11  articles that talk about labor and management

         12  working together and having labor management issues

         13  to discuss; issues and concerns and things are

         14  coming up new in an agency or department that may

         15  not be contracts who are in a nature where contract

         16  team and the agency's labor relations people would

         17  be involved. Quite appropriate, these are the forums

         18  where an agency would discuss with the union the

         19  direction that it's heading in as far as a

         20  particular area; let's assume procurement or with

         21  the whole restructuring of the agency and what have

         22  you so that they will have these type of discussions

         23  in order to get input from the union about the

         24  agencies directions and charge and what have you. I

         25  believe that and I'm not sure, do you know if the
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          2  agencies or the City of New York with the contracts

          3  with the various unions have that provision in there

          4  where they have these type of discussions on a

          5  quarterly basis or semi- annual basis?

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know. I would

          7  have to check with the Office of Labor Relations

          8  about what the process is and get back to you on

          9  that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. I'm going

         11  to ask the same question of the unions also.

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They're going to

         14  be coming up. Let me just ask, you stated in your

         15  testimony that the Council should be discrete about

         16  the information we receive pursuant to Intro 521

         17  since it may impact competition. But doesn't Local

         18  Law 35 already require this information be submitted

         19  to the union presumably a competitor for the

         20  contract before the agency request best and final

         21  offers anyway?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: Yes. It's not the union

         23  that I'm concerned about in this instance. It's the

         24  other guys. The disclosure of the cost analysis

         25  would be of great benefit to the private sector,
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          2  non- City worker competitor and that's the way in

          3  which the process could conceivably be distorted.

          4  That's why we wouldn't treat it as a document that's

          5  available under fall out. The law builds in a

          6  disclosure to the union at a point which is

          7  designed, I assume, to help the union compete for

          8  that contract. It's not the union's interest to

          9  disclose it to the public and help their

         10  competitors. So we're assuming that the union isn't

         11  doing that. We're suggesting that if you treat as a

         12  public document, you would have an inadvertent

         13  result there that is probably in no one's interest.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I hear you loud

         15  and clear. Is there anything in the current law, if

         16  you know, that requires that this information be

         17  held confidential or is that just the agency's

         18  operating procedure?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: It has been an operating

         20  procedure. Again, if I could put it in context,

         21  nothing except for privacy related information,

         22  nothing in the freedom of information law exceptions

         23  is mandatory. Freedom of information law authorizes

         24  the withholding of information that would otherwise

         25  be public. But it does not compel the withholding of
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          2  information. Any government agency has the

          3  discretion to permit disclosure. In this instance,

          4  because of the sensitivity of the information, the

          5  government agencies that have had it so far have

          6  treated it as largely non- disclosable because the

          7  policy considerations compel that. In the context of

          8  foil, it would be very unusual for a law to specify

          9  that something couldn't be disclosed. It's simply we

         10  avail ourselves of an available exception.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm going to

         12  turn to my colleague, Dr. Stewart from Brooklyn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chair. Ms. Simpson, this bill comprised at any

         15  contract $100,000 or more, it would effect any

         16  contract with $100,000 or more. Do you see any

         17  provision within it that would prevent the

         18  Department from not cutting enough contracts to

         19  avoid that?

         20                 MS. SIMPSON: Not necessarily within

         21  the law. But $100,000 is such a low dollar threshold

         22  for City contracts that the effort it would take to

         23  cut it up and process the contracts would drown them

         24  in paper. I don't imagine that's a realistic --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm just
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          2  looking like if you have a building to be painted

          3  and you decide to do repairs and paint and all of

          4  that, you say listen, we would have to break it up

          5  in three, four different floors to give four

          6  different contracts so that we don't have to report.

          7  We don't have to do this or we don't have to do

          8  that. I'm just looking --

          9                 MS. SIMPSON: We're luckily if we get

         10  one floor painted for $100,000. But let me just

         11  mention one other statute which again the Council

         12  recently amended and it's probably relevant to your

         13  concern. The small purchase rules which are under

         14  Section 314 were recently amended to raise the small

         15  purchase limit to $100,000. Now the significance of

         16  that is that it is already unlawful for agencies to

         17  split contracts that should be one contract in order

         18  to avid the small purchase limits and stuff. The

         19  Comptroller and my office exercise substantial

         20  oversight to prevent artificial contracts splitting.

         21  Anything below $100,000 that gets chopped up into

         22  little bits would be looked at anyway. Again,

         23  processing a contract through the procurement system

         24  as much as we try to streamline our rules and make

         25  it easy as possible, it's still a lot of work and
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          2  lot of paper and a lot of time. I don't believe the

          3  agencies would find it productive to cut contracts

          4  up into tiny little pieces just to avoid this law.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I don't see

          6  it as cutting it into tiny pieces. I'm just looking

          7  at the fact that just because they're going to be

          8  reporting -- I'm looking at the fact that if you

          9  have a contract, let's say of $300,000 and even

         10  though what's going to be done might include

         11  different things that they can then divide it up

         12  into these specialities. For example, painting, the

         13  sheet rocking or something else, if you do that.

         14  Whereas if one person could have had that contract

         15  and do all three phases of that which is the sheet

         16  rocking, the preparation and the painting, it comes

         17  down to three separate contracts instead of one,

         18  just to avoid the reporting. Just looking at that

         19  factor and I wanted to know if there are any other

         20  specific thing that you see that would prevent that

         21  from happening because one company can have four

         22  different contracts of just barely under $100,000

         23  each and that could have been one contract.

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, there are so many

         25  provisions; $100,000 is a standard limitation in
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          2  procurement for many things. A $100,000 is the small

          3  purchase limit. A $100,000 in the VENDEX rule and

          4  VENDEX is actually relevant there because if as you

          5  say a single contractor ended up with more than one

          6  contract, each one just being below $100,000, he

          7  would get caught in VENDEX anyway and all that

          8  information would become public and again, the

          9  unions are very skilled at using the VENDEX system

         10  to determine contractor information. We get frequent

         11  request for a public access information from the

         12  unions which we provide routinely out of VENDEX. So

         13  in a situation like you described, all the people

         14  who would get those contracts would end up probably

         15  in VENDEX anyway and all that information would be

         16  disclosed.

         17                 I just caution, I don't want to get

         18  too jaded and I know that $100,000 is a lot of

         19  money. But our procurement budget is $9 billion with

         20  a B. And these construction jobs that you're talking

         21  about in terms of sheet rocking or whatever, they're

         22  often done on requirement contracts where as much as

         23  $100 million worth of similar jobs in the City would

         24  be on a single contract. It's very unlikely that an

         25  agency would cut a $300,000 contract into four
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          2  pieces just to avoid this law. It's not the most

          3  onerous regulation that they're dealing with.

          4  They're dealing with many regulations that are

          5  burdensome and avoiding this one burden wouldn't

          6  help them.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I don't know

          8  if this question was asked before, but who if any

          9  other than the agency personnel reviews the agency

         10  comparative costs of benefit analysis? Who else does

         11  this?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: Where the law has been

         13  written obviously, the Comptroller has seen those

         14  and reviewed them typically and then the union sees

         15  them at a particular stage of the contracting

         16  process as does the City Council. This bill would

         17  alter the timing of that. When we're talking about

         18  insuring regulatory compliance, my office would look

         19  at the analysis just to make sure that they satisfy

         20  what the law requires them to have in them. And

         21  there is some specifics to that. And on occasion,

         22  when issues come up that affect the terms in the

         23  contract or the terms in the bid, I'm assuming that

         24  the Law Department looks at them.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Take me
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          2  through the steps. If I am a contractor, I register

          3  as a contractor and I have my insurance and I have

          4  my stuff, take me through the steps, how can I start

          5  doing business with the City as to bid on a

          6  contract.

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: If a contract is being

          8  let by competitive bids, then any vendor who signs

          9  up, which is something he can do on the web or on

         10  paper, anyone who signs up to be on the bidder list

         11  for that category of work will receive a copy of the

         12  notice that tells him that the bid is available to

         13  be picked up. Many vendors also read the City Record

         14  and sign up to receive e- mails from the City Record

         15  when particular kinds of contracts are announced.

         16  But the two ways in which bid contracts in

         17  particular are generally announced is that they're

         18  in the City record and there are notices mailed to

         19  the people who are on the bidders list.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm still

         21  fuzzy there. You're saying if I'm a contractor, I

         22  first have to register with the City.

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: You don't have too. You

         24  can read the City Record and not register at all.

         25  But if you choose to register, you'll get more.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You'll get

          3  the information.

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: You'll get a copy.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And then the

          6  information is put out and there is an application

          7  or something that I have to say basically, it's an

          8  open bid?

          9                 MS. SIMPSON: Virtually all the time

         10  that we use competitive still bids, it's an open

         11  bid. It's rare for us to use a pre- qualified list.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Then if I'm

         13  awarded a contract, the City now sends me all the

         14  necessary documents to start the process.

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, in a bid

         16  situation, the bid pretty much is the contract. What

         17  is sent as part of the bid package is the contract.

         18  What happens after you are determined to be the low

         19  bidder is that an evaluation is done by the agency

         20  and that's called a responsibility review. The

         21  agency has to determine that you have both the

         22  financial capability and the requisite business

         23  integrity to be a vendor and that's where VENDEX

         24  comes into play. That's where they look at your tax

         25  status and make sure that you've paid your taxes.
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          2  It's all those issues. That process occurs and there

          3  may or may not be communication back and forth with

          4  the agency to make sure that all the documents are

          5  in order. But you're not determined to be the final

          6  awardee of the contract until both things happen.

          7  You have to have the low bid and you have to be

          8  determined to be the responsible vendor.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Before you

         10  get to that process, who determines or who evaluates

         11  whether City workers will be displaced?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: The vendor is not part

         13  of that at all.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No, no, I

         15  understand that. But before you get to the point

         16  where you say, well something is going out for

         17  bidding. Who determines whether City workers is

         18  going to be displaced?

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: That's done in

         20  accordance with the law. In most cases, there is not

         21  much thought involved because the service in

         22  question is one that has been contracted out for

         23  decades.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That doesn't

         25  mean we don't have workers who are within the system
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          2  who can do that work.

          3                 MS. SIMPSON: But that's not what the

          4  law requires. The law requires a finding that this

          5  contract will displace workers and if this contract

          6  has been done this way for 20 years, then there are

          7  no workers to be displaced.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         11  Addabbo. Before you begin, Council Member Addabbo,

         12  we were joined by Council Member John Liu of Queens.

         13  Council Member Addabbo.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair. Ms. Simpson, just to fill in some of the

         16  blanks of my notes here, you had mentioned in your

         17  response to a question by Chairman Jackson when he

         18  had asked you the appropriate union should be

         19  notified of the solicitation of services, you said

         20  you didn't think so. I was wondering if you could

         21  clarify that of why the unions would not be? And if

         22  the information is there and it would be easy to do

         23  so, why wouldn't you notify the unions?

         24                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, as I said because

         25  more than nine times out of ten, you're talking
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          2  about something where there is no question. Everyone

          3  knows it's just the reissuance of the same contract

          4  that we've doing that way for decades.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: They would

          6  know already.

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: It's in the City Record.

          8  They've seen it before. They saw it the last time we

          9  solicited it. No controversy has arisen. There is no

         10  issue. Again, the unions do monitor, at least I

         11  believe they monitor, things like VENDEX and things

         12  like the City Record. We do get questions

         13  periodically from the unions for public information

         14  about solicitations that are pending or contracts

         15  that are in the VENDEX system. And we routinely

         16  supply that information.

         17                 The union, again the City Record is

         18  set up, DCAS has been working very hard to increase

         19  its ease of electronic use so one can sign up as a

         20  subscriber. One gets e- mails from the City Record

         21  for information targeted to particular areas. I

         22  don't know what purpose would be served and it's a

         23  lot of paper for us to be sending notices out every

         24  time we're doing something that is identical to

         25  something we did six times before and all of which
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          2  predates the enactment of this law.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And if there

          4  was a finding that no City employees would be

          5  displaced, just so again I clarify my notes here,

          6  the appeal process for that finding, you say analyst

          7  is used. Is that correct?

          8                 MS. SIMPSON: It's not an appeal

          9  process at all. What I'm saying is, if someone comes

         10  forward and again I'm positing a circumstance that

         11  is quite rare. The lion share even of the materials

         12  that come into our office for review are services

         13  that have been contracted out exactly the way they

         14  are contracted out now for many years before. It's

         15  unusual for something to come in where when we look

         16  at we go, hum, this is a brand new thing not like

         17  any other thing they're doing. Let's be sure they

         18  really know what they're talking about when they say

         19  that it's not going to displace anyone. When that

         20  happens and it doesn't happen frequently, all that

         21  the agency has to do in the first instance is check

         22  a box on a form. So they've checked the box and

         23  they've said no displacement is going to happen.

         24                 My staff might go after the agency

         25  for more information to be sure that that box was
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          2  correctly checked. What we do on that is not

          3  different than what we do to let contracts on 15

          4  other issues. What our office does when we look at

          5  contracts, is we dissect all the procedural

          6  requirements that are in the charter, all of them,

          7  all of the requirements in the different local laws

          8  and all the requirements in the PPB rules. We have

          9  created forms that are designed to bring out the

         10  required certifications by the agency to make sure

         11  they tell us that every single one of the applicable

         12  rules has been followed.

         13                 Before we sign off on behalf of the

         14  Mayor, we look at every single one of those and

         15  determine if the agency's statement is believable,

         16  if it's clear, if it's going to be understood, where

         17  the Comptroller sees it for registration. We look at

         18  all of those things. We sign off after we are

         19  comfortable that the way the agency has described it

         20  is correct. But so the process begins obviously with

         21  our analysts, but it comes all the way up to those

         22  of us who sign on behalf of the Mayor.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: In your

         24  response, you distinguish between items, I guess,

         25  already either in the pipeline of contracts existing
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          2  and new items. Is it safe to say with the new items,

          3  then the unions would be notified? Is that correct?

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: The way the law is

          5  structured, the unions are not notified unless a

          6  displacement finding is made and the agency decides

          7  to proceed. New items have been and I'll give you

          8  some examples. Again, particularly in Human

          9  Services, new items have been because new sources of

         10  funding come into the pipeline that weren't there

         11  before. Often these are pass through, federal and

         12  state monies that are awarded to the City and the

         13  City awards by contract. They are not monies that

         14  the City had before so there is nobody doing the

         15  work now. There are no workers. There is nobody to

         16  be displaced. The agency makes a finding a no

         17  displacement and goes forward with the contracts.

         18  That's not something that would trigger a notice to

         19  anybody nor should it under the law because there is

         20  not a prospect that anybody would be displaced. The

         21  money was never there before.

         22                 Again, it is a very small slice of

         23  the pie where you're talking about an agency doing a

         24  service by contract that it currently has employees

         25  even doing part of and those are the ones that we're
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          2  looking at. The most likely circumstance where it

          3  happens is the one that is before us with DHS. The

          4  most likely circumstance where this occurs is where

          5  we have a facility, an actual place, that is owned

          6  and operated by City workers and then a decision is

          7  made to take the whole facility from being a City

          8  run facility to a privately run facility and that is

          9  where you're going to see a potential for

         10  displacement that obviously we would expect the

         11  agency to disclose to us and we would expect them to

         12  do that analysis.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And lastly,

         14  Ms. Simpson, in my notes with regards to my earlier

         15  questioning, you said that there are policy

         16  directives on Local Law 35. Is that correct?

         17                 MS. SIMPSON: Again, I'm in the

         18  process of reviewing decades of policy directives. I

         19  have not seen a policy directive. I'm sure when it

         20  passed, there probably was one. We are in the

         21  process -- what I said is that we have had policy

         22  discussions and when we did the directives that

         23  changed the forms that the agencies fill out, we

         24  drew particular attention in our training to the

         25  Section 312 issues to show them how the new forms,
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          2  which I did testify at this Committee about, I don't

          3  know, a year or more ago, we gave them training to

          4  make sure that they completed those forms correctly.

          5  Apart from that, because of the Mayor's Executive

          6  Order consolidating the Mayor's Office of Contracts

          7  and the Mayor's Office of Construction into what we

          8  now call the Mayor's Office of Contracts Services,

          9  my staff and I are currently in the process of

         10  looking at all of the policy directives that were

         11  ever issued by either office and trying to

         12  consolidate them into a nice simple user- friendly

         13  policy manual. We expect to have something that will

         14  be easier for agencies to work with at the

         15  conclusion of that process.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: I'm sorry. Do

         17  we have any timeline for this process roughly?

         18                 MS. SIMPSON: Fiscal year, roughly.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And that

         20  information will be shared with possibly even this

         21  Committee?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: The policy manual when

         23  it's done would definitely, I think under the rule,

         24  would be a public document.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: And at this
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          2  point, you wouldn't want to go into any current

          3  policy directives with regards to Local Law 35?

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't want there to be

          5  any mystery. If there is a policy directive out

          6  there, the policy directive is probably about how to

          7  document the process not about how to -- the

          8  language on what the law requires will be copied.

          9  Our policy directives don't paraphrase. They just

         10  copy exactly what's in there. And so there would be

         11  requirements for how that is reflected on the

         12  documents that are submitted to us.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you

         14  very much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're welcome.

         16  We've been joined by Council Member Yvette Clarke of

         17  Brooklyn and she has questions. Council Member

         18  Clarke.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair. Good afternoon, Ms. Simpson.

         21                 MS. SIMPSON: Hello.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: How are you?

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: I'm good and I love your

         24  hat.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you. I'm
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          2  trying to stay warm in this blizzard we're in the

          3  midst of. But I just wanted to ask about the

          4  application of Local Law 35 as it relates to the

          5  Department of Education. Do you have a sense on the

          6  Mayor's position where that's concerned? Because

          7  there has been a number of instances before this

          8  Committee already with respect to the privatization

          9  of some maintenance functions that have at least

         10  come to us on at least two occasions. Can you give

         11  us some insight on that?

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: I can't. I'm afraid

         13  you'll have to go elsewhere to get discussion. As I

         14  think you know from our other discussions, all of

         15  the City procurement rules, the whole PPB structure

         16  does not apply to the Department of Education. When

         17  the Department of Education was made a mayoral

         18  agency for purposes of control, it was not made a

         19  mayoral agency for procurement. Its procurement

         20  rules remain governed by State law only. There are

         21  not subject to our system. Therefore, I don't

         22  exercise oversight. We obviously work very

         23  cooperatively and collegially on issues that are in

         24  common with the Department of Education. But their

         25  procurements do not come through our office and are
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          2  not subject to our rules.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And your

          4  office is not even consulted where procurement

          5  matters of concern. That's a huge procurement

          6  budget.

          7                 MS. SIMPSON: It is a huge procurement

          8  budget. It is governed according to the terms of the

          9  statute by State law not by City law.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We've been

         13  joined by Council Member David Yassky of Brooklyn.

         14  I'm turning to my colleague, John Liu of Queens.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair and thank you for joining us today, Ms.

         17  Simpson. Quick question about two procurement

         18  efforts or I should say privatization efforts that

         19  are currently under way that I believe recently or

         20  relatively recently announced by Mayor Bloomberg.

         21  One is at the Department of Homeless Services and

         22  the other privatization effort is at the Department

         23  of Corrections. Do either of these efforts include

         24  some kind of plan of assistance for any employees

         25  that would be displaced by these efforts?
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          2                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know that the

          3  procurement has proceeded through the process to

          4  where that would be looked at. I'm not really in a

          5  position to discuss the specifics of what's in those

          6  plans. I will take your question and get back to

          7  you. But I don't have the specifics in front of me

          8  of what those, I'm aware of those two, but I'm not

          9  certain what the specifics are.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Are you aware of

         11  any privatization efforts on part of the

         12  Administration that includes some kind of plan of

         13  action to assist displaced City employees?

         14                 MS. SIMPSON: Those are the only two

         15  privatization initiatives that have occurred in this

         16  Administration. And neither one of them is through

         17  the pipeline to the point where a contract would be

         18  registered and any displacement would occur.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: It sounds and am

         20  I'm correct in understanding that we're a long way

         21  off before --

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: We're someway off. I

         23  don't know enough about the timeline to tell you how

         24  long a way off it is. But neither of them have

         25  reached that issue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: At what point in

          3  the process does it reach the Mayor's Office on

          4  Contracts?

          5                 MS. SIMPSON: The issuing of complying

          6  with Local Law 35, could reach us and does reach us

          7  at several points. It reaches us when the

          8  procurement is initially proposed. It reaches us

          9  certainly when a contract award is about to be made

         10  before that award goes to the Comptroller. What I

         11  was saying in reference to your question is that for

         12  a plan of assistance to be needed, the agency has to

         13  have made a finding that it's going to award a

         14  contract to an outside company.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So then the

         16  contract itself or the request for -- there is an

         17  RFP that gets issued before the contract and from

         18  what it sounds like in the RFP process, there is not

         19  even any consideration for a plan of assistance for

         20  displaced employees. Assisting displaced employees

         21  doesn't come up until the contract is being drawn?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: It doesn't come up until

         23  you've made a decision that there is going to be a

         24  contract and having a competition that the unions

         25  are participating in is part of the process. If the
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          2  union were to be successful in that process, there

          3  would be no displacement here go no plan. All I'm

          4  suggesting is that at a point when the agency has

          5  not made a decision to award a contract, it's not

          6  surprising that they have not made a decision about

          7  what kinds of assistance to offer to employees.

          8  Again, it will vary. There are agencies,

          9  particularly if you're talking about an agency that

         10  runs multiple facilities, there are agencies where

         11  the plan of assistance might be as simple as

         12  absorbing City workers into existing positions that

         13  are open elsewhere in the system.

         14                 There are other agencies, if you're

         15  talking about a service that's unique and a decision

         16  is being made to privatize a unique service where

         17  there might be no where for those employees to go

         18  within that agency, but similarly there might be

         19  somewhere else for them to go. At the point that

         20  we're talking about, no one has made a decision that

         21  they're going anywhere. There is no plan to move

         22  them anywhere yet.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Ms. Simpson, how

         24  long have you been with the Mayor's Office of

         25  Contracts?
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          2                 MS. SIMPSON: Almost two years,

          3  February 17.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And not before

          5  that in any other capacity?

          6                 MS. SIMPSON: With this office, no.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Would you be

          8  familiar with the contracts that the office may have

          9  let, say for the past ten years, somewhat?

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: In general terms, I've

         11  made myself familiar as we consider the policy in

         12  this area.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So for the past

         14  ten years --

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: But I can't give you a

         16  count. I can tell you for the Bloomberg

         17  Administration, including the time prior to my

         18  arrival, the count is two.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: For the past ten

         20  years, say how many kinds of efforts have resulted

         21  in a contract being let out that fell under Local

         22  Law 35? Is it two? Is it ten, 50?

         23                 MS. SIMPSON: It's a handful. It's

         24  five or less. It's a handful. Again, I get confused

         25  because there was contracts like this that were in
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          2  the pipeline when the law was passed. I don't know

          3  if the ones I'm thinking of are the ones that caused

          4  the law to be passed or whether they were the first

          5  ones that went through after the law was passed. But

          6  the number of these types of contracts that have

          7  occurred is a small, small handful.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And my

          9  understanding is that in none of those contracting

         10  process was the work awarded to, I guess you had

         11  categorized it as the union bidder--

         12                 MS. SIMPSON: The City workers.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: The City workers.

         14  In every one of those cases, it was always let out

         15  to a private contractor.

         16                 MS. SIMPSON: I don't know whether

         17  we're talking about a number that is zero, one or

         18  two. But in the instances that you're talking about,

         19  I'm not aware -- let me put it this way. I'm not

         20  aware of any instance when the displacement finding

         21  of this law was triggered and then a decision was

         22  made to stay with a winning proposal from the City

         23  workers as opposed to going to an outside firm. I

         24  would be happy to get back to you as to whether

         25  there are any examples to the contrary. But I don't,
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          2  again, we're talking about a very, very small

          3  number.

          4                 Meanwhile, certainly hundreds of RFPs

          5  for new -- I'm sorry, hundreds of situations have

          6  arisen where an agency had a choice in a budget

          7  setting to make a decision whether to take a City

          8  worker service and contract it out. And in none of

          9  those instances, save the two that I described in

         10  the current Administration, has the agency decided

         11  to go with the finding that involved displacement.

         12  In many instances, I suspect the issue doesn't even

         13  get looked at very closely because the agency knows

         14  of the existence of this law and makes a decision to

         15  go another route for its budget cut. Most budget

         16  cuts are accomplished, as you know, through other

         17  kinds of measures.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         19  much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're welcome.

         21  Council Member Clarke of Brooklyn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair. Just in your wrapping up of your comments and

         24  I'm sorry because I was late, but it is the agency

         25  that establishes the trigger on whether Local Law 35
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          2  is applicable or is it your office that determines

          3  that?

          4                 MS. SIMPSON: Well, in the final

          5  instance, if we didn't believe the agency had

          6  complied with the law, we wouldn't sign off. But the

          7  circumstance for the agency as the law contemplates,

          8  the agency makes that determination in the first

          9  instance.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: What if the

         11  agency has a particular interpretation of when that

         12  trigger should be? Is there a consistent

         13  understanding and interpretation of Local Law 35?

         14  Have you found that to be the case?

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: I have found it to be

         16  consistent. I've had discussions with agencies.

         17  We've had training with agencies. I've talked to the

         18  Law Department on the issue. The issue tends to be

         19  fairly simply to resolve factually.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And

         21  uniformally understood and interpreted?

         22                 MS. SIMPSON: I believe so, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. The only

         24  reason I asked that because it seems as though there

         25  is a lot of discretion given to the agency. I
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          2  wouldn't want us to be in a position where perhaps

          3  you should have been notified and then have a

          4  discussion about the protocols and that didn't

          5  happen in a timely manner. Ultimately, what we're

          6  talking about here is people's livelihoods and we

          7  want to be sure that there is a protocol and a

          8  process in place that triggers a plan and not a last

          9  minute plan.

         10                 MS. SIMPSON: I do understand that.

         11  Again, I just want to reiterate because I do

         12  recognize that you may not have heard my earlier

         13  testimony. When a new program is initiated and

         14  that's really the one where we would be looking at

         15  this. This is an issue that my office knows to look

         16  for. The agencies know we're going to look at it.

         17  It's something where its more than a perfunctory

         18  discussion that's going to occur. Each item is

         19  pretty fact specific.

         20                 I don't know that there is a protocol

         21  that I would devise other than they have to tell the

         22  truth. And they know that because they are signing a

         23  certification every time they send something to us

         24  and there are consequences when they don't tell the

         25  truth. There are consequences sometimes if they
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          2  misrepresent things inadvertently. There are

          3  consequences always if they misrepresent something

          4  on purpose to us. We're very tough on making sure

          5  that the agencies document what they're doing to us

          6  in a truthful manner so that we can exercise our

          7  oversight correctly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Ms. Simpson, I

         11  want to thank you for expanding on your answers and

         12  responses to the questions that we have. I

         13  appreciate your cooperation and I'm glad the

         14  Administration is not opposing Intro 521 --

         15                 MS. SIMPSON: A.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: -- A. I want to

         17  thank you for coming in and stay warm you and your

         18  staff.

         19                 MS. SIMPSON: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         21  much. Next we're going to call up a panel of three;

         22  Joseph Colangelo, representing SEIU Local 246; Leon

         23  Soffin, P.E., DC 37, Local 375; and Jon Forster,

         24  Local 375, DC 37. We will take the DC 37 and then

         25  we'll call on you. Thank you. Would you just
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          2  identify yourself and what your position is with the

          3  union and proceed forward with your testimony?

          4                 MR. FORSTER: Yes, thank you. Good

          5  afternoon. My name is Jon Forster. I'm the First

          6  Vice President with Local 375, the Civil Service

          7  Technical Guild and with me is Leon Soffin, also

          8  with Local 375. I'll make some comments first. In

          9  fact, given the opportunity to follow Marla Simpson,

         10  I'm going to stray a little bit from my prepared

         11  comments because I want to speak to some of the

         12  things that I heard just now in her testimony.

         13                 I think that from our experience, we

         14  as Local 375 at the Civil Service Technical Guild,

         15  we represent approximately 6,500 engineers,

         16  architects, landscape architects, construction

         17  managers and scientists that are in almost every

         18  City agency in this City. Our experience has been

         19  that in fact we have had a tremendous increase in

         20  the number of services that have been contracted

         21  out. In our experience similarly, is that we have

         22  not been able to invoke Local Law 35 very often in

         23  terms of trying to fight those experiences. Just

         24  some that come to mind. At the Department of Design

         25  and Construction in the structures unit, we do
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          2  almost no in- house design anymore. We used to do a

          3  substantial proportion of in- house design. That's

          4  completely been taken over by consultants.

          5                 Most recently at the Department of

          6  Environmental Protection, where they are dealing

          7  with the building of water tunnel number three,

          8  there was an effort to bring in outside consultants

          9  to do exactly the same kind of work that our

         10  construction managers have done and have

         11  historically done not just on water tunnel number

         12  three, but on water tunnel two and number one as

         13  well going back to the very beginnings of our Local.

         14  At the Department of Education, the Gordian Group

         15  (phonetic) has been brought in to in fact do the

         16  maintenance in the schools. It is exactly again the

         17  same kind of work that our people have historically

         18  been doing within the Department of Education. The

         19  Gordian Group remains there. In fact, their contract

         20  is up for renewal again. Perhaps Marla doesn't see

         21  that because it's been in place for five years. But

         22  they are consistently doing the same kind of work.

         23                 At the Parks Department, the

         24  surveying work at the Parks Department is slowly

         25  being increasingly contracted out. That happens
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          2  while our in- house surveyors are reduced in

          3  numbers. This begins to get at part of the problem

          4  here. Displacement is not the only concern. That

          5  were we have either attrition, overtime, through

          6  normal courses of events, or where we have increased

          7  budgets, there is suddenly a window of opportunity

          8  there to bring in outside consultants in a way where

          9  there is not this one to one automatic displacement

         10  that one might expect to occur. But there is in

         11  fact, the bottom line is that it results in an

         12  increasing number of consultants and an increasing

         13  number of both private sector consultants that would

         14  do the kind of design work we do as well as the

         15  construction management work we do.

         16                 Just to name a couple of other major

         17  areas understanding that these for the moment may

         18  not fall under Local Law 35, but also that we have

         19  to at some point resolve these issues. At the New

         20  York City Housing Authority, five construction

         21  management firms have been brought in to completely

         22  replace or not entirely replace, but duplicate what

         23  our people do. And at the School Construction

         24  Authority, perhaps the most onerous of all. We had a

         25  situation where in 2003, they laid off over 100 of
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          2  our members, architects and engineers. They said

          3  they had a drop in budget. Six months later, low and

          4  behold, they have an increase in budget and now they

          5  have rehired exclusively consultants to do exactly

          6  the same kind of work that our people do.

          7                 Now, why is that problematic? It's

          8  problematic because what you're doing is you are

          9  bringing in new people who have not dealt with the

         10  system. You are bringing in people who are coming in

         11  from the private sector who do not have the same

         12  commitment as our people do in- house to keep costs

         13  low. At the School Construction Authority, and by

         14  the way in other places too, we have consistently

         15  shown in our comparative cost analyses that we do

         16  the work in- house with Local 375 designers and

         17  construction managers, we do it for less. We do that

         18  in building police stations, at the Department

         19  Design and Construction. We do that in the design

         20  plans for the Second Avenue Subway and we do that in

         21  the School Construction Authority.

         22                 We will build you a 100,000 square

         23  foot school in the School Construction Authority and

         24  it will cost you $9 million less if you do it in-

         25  house than if you do it with a consultant firms.
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          2  That happens because we do it with fewer change

          3  orders. Because we have the institutional knowledge

          4  to do it; because we've been doing this for many,

          5  many years. Just parenthetically, I think we're all

          6  terribly concerned at this point about trying to use

          7  the campaign for fiscal equity money as effectively

          8  and as efficiently as we can. If we can do these

          9  schools for $9 million less, I can tell you, we

         10  could build a whole lot more seats if we do this

         11  work in- house. Yet, there is a hiring freeze at the

         12  School Construction Authority.

         13                 Local Law 35 has not allowed us to

         14  come to grips with any of these issues. It is

         15  because I think it is premised on the idea that

         16  there is going to be this one to one displacement.

         17  And frankly, that's not the critical factor at this

         18  point. Our problem is that we allow through

         19  attrition or when budgets are expanded, we have this

         20  compulsion to move to the private market. It's not

         21  effective; it's inefficient. And I think we have to

         22  come to grips with where that is detrimental and a

         23  misuse of tax payers money. Mr. Soffin is going to

         24  go into some details about what we think should be

         25  done in Local 35.
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          2                 Just generally, in Local Law 35, we

          3  suggest that first of all it not be triggered solely

          4  on displacement. But that in fact, there would be a

          5  comparative cost analysis done for any work that was

          6  going to be contracted out. And if it was not

          7  comparatively effective or cost efficient, to

          8  contract it out then you don't contract it out and

          9  you keep it in- house. I think it is the wisest use

         10  of tax payers money. I think we'll find inefficiency

         11  that we just are not getting and we're consistently

         12  not getting when the private sector tries to come in

         13  and do this work instead. We do have institutional

         14  knowledge. We do have in- house experience. And I

         15  really do believe that we can give Local Law 35 some

         16  teeth. But it has to be done one, without it being

         17  invoked only when there is displacement and two, it

         18  has to have real teeth so that in fact the

         19  contracting out would not go forward if in fact it's

         20  not cost effective to do so.

         21                 Let me also say, we talk a lot about

         22  cost effectiveness, but I guess the other piece of

         23  this is, it is critical for the City to keep and

         24  maintain a well- trained professional and up- to-

         25  date professional staff so that we can also do
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          2  proper public oversight where there are private

          3  projects. There are inevitably going to be private

          4  projects. Some of them will be there because certain

          5  specialities are required. Some of them will be

          6  there because we have a tremendous of influx of

          7  money at a particular time, we've got to hire up

          8  fast. They are going to be instances where we're

          9  going to have private projects done in the private

         10  sectors. In those cases, we have to maintain a well

         11  trained and professional in- house staff that is

         12  able to oversee those projects with efficiency and

         13  with professionalism that we have there now. But

         14  we've got to be careful about maintaining that.

         15  Because if we allow those ranks to be eroded, we're

         16  going to have fewer and fewer people who are able to

         17  really properly oversee this.

         18                 I would also say that in this whole

         19  process, it is the civil servant, for our experience

         20  for instance at Local 375, our people routinely

         21  disallow literally millions of dollars in change

         22  orders in the City every single year. Millions of

         23  dollars of change orders. And any particular agency

         24  you go to, I can show you hundreds of thousands of

         25  dollars all the time. It's millions overall. One of
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          2  the reasons we're able to do that is because our

          3  guys, we get paid the same amount of money no matter

          4  which way it goes. Whether that change order

          5  happens, whether that change order doesn't happen,

          6  our guys get paid the same amount of money. There is

          7  nothing there. There is no incentive built in there

          8  to get those change orders in. In fact, our people

          9  routinely reject them and properly so and we save

         10  the City a lot of money in doing it. I think we just

         11  have to be careful about protecting that public

         12  sector and so those public sector workers. Thank

         13  you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Mr.

         15  Soffin.

         16                 MR. SOFFIN: Yes. Before I start my

         17  testimony, I want to say in the United States of

         18  America, it is generally accepted as an important

         19  criteria for both public and private agencies and

         20  corporations that they should be operating in a

         21  course of effective manner. Whether you read the New

         22  York Times or the Wall Street Journal, you hear over

         23  and over again, are you operating in a cost-

         24  effective way.

         25                 I will stress in my analysis of Local
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          2  Law 35 the importance that City agencies operate

          3  cost effectively. I might add, I'm a professional

          4  engineer. I was the manager of Structural

          5  Engineering at the Board of Education and the School

          6  Construction Authority and I've been working with

          7  Local 375 for many years now. The analysis or the

          8  scope of work of design and supervision of

          9  construction contracts with the tool of comparative

         10  cost analysis, I'm going to keep on repeating three

         11  magic words, comparative cost analysis, will

         12  indicate if a contract will be more cost effective

         13  when done by City engineers, architects or project

         14  managers.

         15                 Unfortunately, at present with Local

         16  Law 35, contracts can be awarded even if comparative

         17  cost analysis shows that the contract is not cost

         18  effective. In other words, even if the City makes a

         19  comparative cost analysis and shows that it's not

         20  cost effective contracted out, they still can do it.

         21  All they have to do is give their reasons why.

         22  Unfortunately, at present and if I'm wrong, correct

         23  me, at present neither the City Council nor the

         24  Comptroller can compel a City agency to operate in a

         25  cost effective manner. The awarding is considering a
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          2  managerial prerogative. Maybe I'm wrong, but I think

          3  I'm right. In other words, we testified before the

          4  School Construction Authority and the President of

          5  the School Construction Authority says, we don't

          6  have to make a comparative cost analysis. We don't

          7  have to justify it. It's a managerial prerogative

          8  for us to contract out. I don't know whether that's

          9  true, but this is what they are saying.

         10                 Getting down to some of the nitty

         11  gritty, the first case I have here is that

         12  contracting got results and no displacement. Well,

         13  that's good. There are no lay offs. What is the

         14  existing law? The existing law calls for an agency

         15  certificate to that effect. The agency says nobody

         16  is going to be laid off. Fine. But we are proposing

         17  the following change. That even when nobody is being

         18  laid off, an agency shall perform a comparative cost

         19  analysis. The union and it was pointed out by Jon

         20  Forster, we have 6,500 members in our organizations,

         21  architects and engineers. The union shall be

         22  notified of agency cost analysis before any

         23  solicitation is issued. And we're saying there

         24  should be no contracting out unless the cost

         25  analysis shows savings of at least ten percent of
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          2  the cost of doing the work in- house.

          3                 In other words, if you're going to

          4  contract out, show that you're going to save money,

          5  show that you're going to save at least ten percent

          6  by contracting out. So far, Local Law 35 does not

          7  address that. Second case, contracting out results

          8  in displacement, lay offs. We're very concerned

          9  about that. The existing law says prior to award of

         10  a contract, both the union, the Comptroller and the

         11  City Council shall be notified of the agency cost

         12  analysis after bids and requests for proposals are

         13  received. Again, the agency may award the contract

         14  even if the cost comparison proves favorable for in-

         15  house work. This is not right. In other words, if

         16  you make a comparative cost analysis and you're

         17  required to do it when people are laid off and it's

         18  more effective to do it in- house, then why contract

         19  out?

         20                 The only thing the agency has to do

         21  is give reasons why the contract was awarded. So

         22  what reasons do the agencies give? This is a tricky

         23  one. The agencies say, we don't have enough people.

         24  Very often, it's due to the fact that there is

         25  attrition like Jon pointed out and that they have
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          2  laid off a lot of people. Then after they lay off

          3  attrition, they say we don't have the people and

          4  we've got to contract out. Then again, the law says

          5  the City Council may hold a hearing. It doesn't say

          6  the City Council shall hold a hearing; may hold a

          7  hearing. What do we advocate? We're advocating that

          8  the union shall be notified of agency cost analysis

          9  before any solicitation is issued. Again, if there

         10  is lay offs, they have to make a cost analysis. If

         11  there is no lay offs according to the law, they

         12  don't have to make a cost analysis. We're saying,

         13  there should be a cost analysis in either case.

         14                 We're saying there shall be no

         15  contracting out which results in displacement when

         16  comparative cost analysis proves cost effective to

         17  doing the work in- house. I've said that a number of

         18  times. Savings from contracting out, we're proposing

         19  shall be at least ten percent of the cost of

         20  delivering services with agency employees. The

         21  agency shall be required to bargain with collective

         22  bargaining representatives over any proposal to

         23  contract out collective bargaining work. This is

         24  very important. When they want to contract out,

         25  right now it's not a collective bargaining issue.
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          2  Why shouldn't it be a collective bargaining issue?

          3  Because first of all, it deals with cost

          4  effectiveness. It deals with lay offs. So why

          5  shouldn't this be an item for collective bargaining?

          6  Please look into that.  When they want to contract

          7  out, it should be an issue of collective bargaining.

          8                 The last thing is that the

          9  procurement policy board rules. Right now it is my

         10  understanding that no public notice for a request

         11  for proposal is necessary when supplies are

         12  solicited from a pre- qualified list. In other

         13  words, if you go to a pre- qualified list of

         14  architects and engineers, you don't have to

         15  advertise in the City Record. We don't even know

         16  that it's taken place. So we recommend a change to

         17  procurement policy board rules to allow the

         18  collective bargaining representatives to be notified

         19  when a solicitation is made from a pre- qualified

         20  list.

         21                 Finally, I just want to repeat.

         22  Everyday you read in the paper that everything has

         23  to be done in a cost effective way, whether it's the

         24  New York Times or the Daily News or the Wall Street

         25  Journal. All you hear over and over again, cost has
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          2  to be effective. Cut costs, cut costs. Local Law 35

          3  does not address that. Please take the necessary

          4  action. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          6  Council Member Stewart.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Earlier I

          8  asked the question of Ms. Simpson about displacement

          9  and she indicated to me (I don't know if you heard),

         10  that any contract that we are talking about here,

         11  $100,000 or more, are contracts that might have been

         12  there 20 years (20 years she used). But based on

         13  what you said a while ago, I can understand that a

         14  lot of these services, because I was trying to pin

         15  her down to services that are being done that used

         16  to be done by union workers and now they are being

         17  contracted out. But she said that these are

         18  contracts that will not affect any workers; wouldn't

         19  displace any workers. And these contracts are

         20  contracts that are being contracted out for over 20

         21  years now. And those are the ones that we are

         22  talking about. How do you respond to her statement?

         23                 MR. FORSTER: This is I think the

         24  problem with looking at only the direct displacement

         25  as being the issue before us. I mean, what has
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          2  happened in just a couple of concrete examples on

          3  this. Again, at the Department of Design and

          4  Construction, the Infrastructure Department, one of

          5  the things we do is operate as resident engineers to

          6  run construction sites. The Department of Design and

          7  Construction routinely bids this work out as well.

          8  In fact, two weeks ago they bid out, there were five

          9  different contracts each worth, I think,

         10  approximately $5 million; one for each borough,

         11  where they are in fact going to hire consultant

         12  resident engineers. That's the work we do. How can

         13  they do this? Two reasons. One, over the years the

         14  number of resident engineers that we have had as in-

         15  house unionized resident engineers has shrunk. So

         16  they need this. And two, frankly their budget has

         17  expanded. So the combination of that says, as Mr.

         18  Soffin said before, they are saying gee we don't

         19  have the staff for this. We've got to contract it

         20  out.

         21                 Now our proposal would be, we

         22  understand that budgets fluctuate. So you leave a

         23  bit of a buffer so that you don't hire up in- house

         24  rate to the top of your budget this year because

         25  next year it may go down somewhat. But we do suggest
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          2  that you hire in- house up to say, 80, 90 percent of

          3  your capacity and allow that buffer for budget

          4  fluctuation. But the reasons that this occurs is

          5  really because of things like attrition or this

          6  example at the SCA where they actually did massive

          7  lay offs and six months later they turned around and

          8  said, gee, we don't have enough people. We've got to

          9  hire somebody. So let's hire some consultants. And

         10  they hire them back on as consultants.

         11                 MR. SOFFIN: At a higher cost.

         12                 MR. FORSTER: At a much higher cost to

         13  the New York City tax payer, absolutely. Or again,

         14  at the Parks Department and the Survey Department,

         15  what's happening there is simply through attrition,

         16  they're losing their surveyors. As another surveyor

         17  retires, they expand the survey contracts. Over the

         18  years, what we're seeing is replacement of City

         19  workers with consultants inevitably at higher costs.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So

         21  legislatively how can we address that point that

         22  you're bringing out whereby they may let go a lot of

         23  folks this month, but six months from now they need

         24  the same people. Is there any way you see that we

         25  can put this into legislation?
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          2                 MR. SOFFIN: Maybe I'm wrong, but I

          3  think in answer to your very good point, I don't

          4  think Local Law 35 deals with that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: No, I don't

          6  see it dealing with that. That's the point I'm

          7  asking. How can we address that?

          8                 MR. SOFFIN: Let me ask you good

          9  people. Go ahead, go ahead.

         10                 MR. FORSTER: I think what we're

         11  asking for on this is in fact to evoke a comparative

         12  cost analysis. These contracts have to be relet

         13  every year or every two years or every three years.

         14  Whether it's the surveyors at the Parks Department;

         15  whether it's the resident engineers that are going

         16  to be hired by DDC, whatever it is. Those contracts

         17  have to be relet. We are asking that there be a

         18  comparative cost analysis done when those contracts

         19  are let. To find out whether or not it is in fact

         20  cost effective. I can tell you that in 90 percent of

         21  the cases, from our experience and all the studies

         22  that we've done on this exact issue, it is not cost

         23  effective. It is not.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But sir?

         25                 MR. FORSTER: Yes?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: That may be

          3  the case. It's not cost effective. But what should

          4  we do and saying that it's not cost effective or

          5  doing the study and all of that is all well and

          6  good, but there should be some way of saying if it's

          7  not cost effective, then what should we do? What is

          8  the next step? Is there some sort of law to prevent

          9  the City from rarely going down that route?

         10                 MR. FORSTER: Well, there isn't of

         11  course. But we're suggesting that Local Law 35 in

         12  fact could be such a law. In the City of San

         13  Francisco, there is such a law. In the State of, I

         14  believe, it's Michigan, there is such a law. There

         15  is some legislative precedent for this. And what

         16  we're suggesting is that we think the Local Law 35

         17  is in fact a proper vehicle without a whole lot of

         18  language change which would in fact allow for a

         19  comparative cost analysis that would then say, you

         20  know what, you cannot contract it out if it's not

         21  cost effective to do so. That could be codified in

         22  Local Law 35.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So you're

         24  saying Local Law 35 would need some sort of

         25  amendment --
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          2                 MR. FORSTER: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: -- With the

          4  fact that if it says it is not cost effective?

          5                 MR. FORSTER: Yes. We don't have any

          6  tool right now that allows us to do that. We have

          7  stuff that hints at it at both the City and the

          8  State level. But we don't have anything that has

          9  that kind of teeth to it.

         10                 MR. SOFFIN: Can I ask a question of

         11  the City Council people here? If you determine in

         12  any given contract that it's cost effective to do

         13  the work in- house and it's not cost effective to

         14  contract it out, can you compel a City agency

         15  whether the Department of Parks, or the Department

         16  of Design and Construction, you go to them with the

         17  facts and say look, why are contracting out? They

         18  can tell you to go jump in a lake although in a very

         19  nice way. Do you have any teeth to compel them to

         20  keep the work in- house if you can show that the

         21  work is more cost effective to be done in- house? In

         22  other words, what teeth do you have? That's the

         23  question.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I guess we have

         25  teeth of persuasion. We have the teeth of public
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          2  ridicule and public examination through

          3  transparency. We have the teeth of political

          4  pressure and we have the teeth of the squeaky wheel

          5  gets the grease.

          6                 MR. SOFFIN: Okay. That's very good.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Those are things

          8  that we have right now. Basically, when you're

          9  fighting a situation, you use everything that you

         10  have. You even, if necessary, you just stand up and

         11  scream and hopefully you frighten the bear to turn

         12  around and go back.

         13                 MR. FORSTER: If I may add by that, I

         14  think that Intro 521 or 521- A actually is going in

         15  the right direction in terms because I understand it

         16  at this point, giving you more jurisdiction in this

         17  very area. Again, I think the cautionary flag I

         18  would raise with 521- A is let's not limit it just

         19  to displacement or else at least let's get a better

         20  definition of what is displacement. It's got to be

         21  broader. It can't just be this one to one

         22  displacement. Because frankly, she just sat here and

         23  testified how many times. She's got two contracts

         24  since she's been in office. They have an average

         25  about two a year. Clearly, there isn't much coming
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          2  up under Local Law 35. Yet the amount of contracting

          3  out that's going out there is enormous.

          4                 MR. SOFFIN: Can I just add one thing

          5  of personal experience?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We're trying to

          7  wrap up. We've got another speaker.

          8                 MR. SOFFIN: Just one last thing. I

          9  was the manager of Structural Engineering at the

         10  Board of Ed. I managed 40 structural engineers

         11  before the lay offs. I can tell you very honestly,

         12  that we have much less errors, we have much less

         13  change orders. Our work is of better quality than

         14  giving it out. Why is it? Is it because we're

         15  smarter? Not necessarily. It is because we're

         16  specialists. We do the work over and over again. We

         17  know the standards. We know the typical details and

         18  so on. It's almost incomprehensible why the City of

         19  New York contracts out most of its work. Even at the

         20  School Construction Authority where it is the only

         21  agency where we have a law that says 40 percent of

         22  the work that has to be done in- house. They violate

         23  the law wholesale. We're only doing about ten

         24  percent now. So we're not saying that 100 percent of

         25  the work should be done in- house. We're saying that
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          2  maybe 40 percent. But we're not even doing 40

          3  percent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I've said loud

          5  and clear to unions, if they're violating the law,

          6  take them to court.

          7                 MR. FORSTER: Absolutely. In fact, we

          8  have. But I think the reason we're here today is

          9  that we're hoping that what will happen is that we

         10  actually get a law which is more clearly violatable,

         11  if that's a word, to strength to Local Law 35 so

         12  that in fact it has teeth in terms of dealing with

         13  this.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. This is an

         15  opening process.

         16                 MR. FORSTER: I realize that. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 MR. SOFFIN: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're welcome.

         22  And next Joe Colangelo of Local 246, New York City.

         23                 MR. COLANGELO: I have to amend my

         24  statement. I have to put good afternoon.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon.
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          2                 MR. COLANGELO: Good afternoon,

          3  Chairman Jackson and members of the Committee. My

          4  name is Joe Colangelo and I am President of Local

          5  246, an affiliate of the Service Employees

          6  International Union.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: SEIU.

          8                 MR. COLANGELO: SEIU, correct. Thank

          9  you for holding this hearing to focus attention on

         10  the issue of privatization of work performed by

         11  members of New York City's civil service, and on the

         12  shortcomings of Local Law 35 in protecting the

         13  interests of the people of City of New York.

         14  Privatization is not the golden answer to the City's

         15  ills. While many praise the private sector, I need

         16  not remind you of ENRON or all of the additional

         17  scandals that have followed.

         18                 People who work in the private sector

         19  are no smarter than those in the public sector. But

         20  sometimes the public sector is not given the right

         21  tools and sometimes public sector management does

         22  not quite frankly know how to manage. In thinking

         23  about these issues, it is important to remember that

         24  the reason for creation of civil service. In the

         25  days before this landmark civic reform, the needs of
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          2  the City and its residents took a back seat to the

          3  enrichment of individuals who controlled the City

          4  government. Patronage, not a efficiency of service,

          5  guided the selection of those on the City's payroll.

          6  You got your job because of who you knew and not how

          7  well you could do the job.

          8                 With the creation and development of

          9  civil service, the norms of honest, efficient

         10  government that the way we know today were put into

         11  place. Positions are created based on the City's

         12  operational needs. The employees are selected for

         13  their positions on the basis of merit after careful

         14  examination and screening. But with privatization,

         15  the City's work is removed from the civil service

         16  system. When private contractors do the City's work,

         17  there is no requirement of a merit selection of

         18  employees. There are no background checks. There are

         19  none of the protections against abuse that we now

         20  take for granted.

         21                 It is also important to note that the

         22  primary purpose of the private firm is to make a

         23  profit. This has no place in the delivery of public

         24  services. The job of my members and the other

         25  300,000 and more City employees is to deliver the
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          2  highest quality of jobs to the citizens of this

          3  City. It is not to improve the bottom line for

          4  private investors.

          5                 Local Law 35 provides a framework for

          6  analyzing whether the City should go seek private

          7  contractors. It is flawed. Even though the City

          8  Council, the Comptroller, or all other party can

          9  clearly provide reasons why the service should be

         10  provided by City employees, the Mayor can still move

         11  forward. You can have a privatization proposal under

         12  which the quality of service would clearly suffer

         13  and the City would pay substantially more and Local

         14  Law 35 would not prevent that proposal from being

         15  adopted and implemented.

         16                 There is nothing to hold the City

         17  administrators and managers to their duty to

         18  administer and manage the government of the greatest

         19  City in the world; to prevent them from avoiding

         20  their responsibility for managing by outsourcing the

         21  job at taxpayers expense. The Municipal Labor

         22  Committee has recently formed a committee that will

         23  analyze Local Law 35 and suggesting changes that

         24  will strengthen the basis objectives of the law. I

         25  am Chairperson of the Committee. I look forward to
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          2  working with all of you to address the problems and

          3  to find a way to protect the right of New Yorkers to

          4  the quality of City services that they deserve.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          7  Clarke of Brooklyn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair. Mr. Colangelo, I want to thank you for your

         10  testimony and ask that whether it's been your

         11  experience as our previous testifiers that attrition

         12  is one of those loopholes that exist within the

         13  Administration. In other words, after a department

         14  is depleted of the expertise or is at a low level,

         15  then you're put into this sort of catch 22, well we

         16  need to man up right away. The easiest way of doing

         17  that is contracting out, never again realizing the

         18  numbers in terms of civil service with the expertise

         19  to fill in those ranks. Is that something that you

         20  see as a widespread sort of back door way of dealing

         21  with this?

         22                 MR. COLANGELO: Clearly, Councilwoman

         23  Clarke, clearly there are situations that arise that

         24  management views as a tool for a reason for

         25  privatization. There are also other issues that
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          2  reflect to the contracting out as stated by the

          3  Administration where contracts have been let out for

          4  decades. These contracts are never reviewed. Once

          5  the contract is let and in a situation and with

          6  respect to Local Law 35, the initial review of the

          7  letting of the contract follows a certain guideline.

          8  But once the contract is let and the Administration

          9  moves forward with their plan to outsource that

         10  work, when the contractors renewed, it's never

         11  revisited. Currently, there is the Procheco Law

         12  (phonetic) and I believe it's Massachusetts where

         13  contracts are revisited after they come up for

         14  review. Whereas in this situation, that never

         15  happens.

         16                 In essence before, when the statement

         17  was made that some contracts have been out for

         18  decades, I find that somewhat as an excuse to say,

         19  well why not look at it again. Why not review it

         20  again? Listen, are there situations where

         21  privatization or where contracting out for the City

         22  of New York is cost effective and benefits the

         23  taxpayers and people of City of New York, I would

         24  not argue against that. What I do argue against is

         25  what we have today and all you have to do is look
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          2  out at the Brooklyn Bridge and do a little study on

          3  what went on when that bridge was constructed and

          4  how there was scams made with the cables originally

          5  on the bridge. I don't want to go into the history.

          6  It's just one of the things that I like.

          7                 But in essence in my statement,

          8  that's what we're talking about. Civil service was

          9  created to protect the public from patronage and

         10  corruption. Because there is no profit molded for

         11  the civil servant. The only thing for the civil

         12  servant is to do a great job and at the end of the

         13  day, get a pat on the back and say you guys are

         14  great or you ladies. That's really what it is all

         15  about. I think we lose sight of that when we look at

         16  what's going on today. That's my opinion. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You've heard Ms.

         18  Simpson of the Mayor's Office of Contracts speak

         19  about that there are two, I think, contracts that

         20  are in the pipeline that may fall under Article 35,

         21  Local Law 35, not Article 35, Local Law 35 where

         22  displacement may occur. Now my understanding is that

         23  the Parks Department may be one of those agencies or

         24  department. My understanding that you as a President

         25  of SEIU Local 246 represent the mechanics. Is that
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          2  correct?

          3                 MR. COLANGELO: Correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Currently how

          5  many mechanics do you represent? I assume that all

          6  of your members are employees of the City of New

          7  York?

          8                 MR. COLANGELO: Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How many do you

         10  represent?

         11                 MR. COLANGELO: Currently now we

         12  represent 19 different titles in 20 agencies. The

         13  bulk of my union which is 1,550 and fluctuates

         14  through attrition, I might add, the bulk of almost

         15  1,300 of those is what considered the auto trade

         16  titles. The other titles also do work within the

         17  scope of the auto trades, although they are all

         18  different. Currently, we represent the majority of

         19  the auto mechanics in my union is a value you would

         20  categorize it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that a

         22  competitive civil service position or non-

         23  competitive civil service position?

         24                 MR. COLANGELO: No, competitive. The

         25  auto trades have to have five years of experience.
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          2  The helpless titles which are serviceman, senior

          3  auto serviceman, auto body worker, different levels

          4  of expertise. Some with two years, some with three

          5  years. But all are civil service tests. As a matter

          6  of fact this year, there is a senior service test

          7  which follows with a practical. We're talking about

          8  skilled craftsman that have a certain level of

          9  expertise prior to coming into the City service.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That is not by

         11  examination, but that's by education and experience.

         12  Is that correct? And license.

         13                 MR. COLANGELO: And then there is an

         14  examination. There are examinations for all those

         15  titles with experienced tied after the examination

         16  and a practical exam after passing the written test.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Have you seen

         18  from an experienced point of view where the City of

         19  New York not hired after employees or resigned for

         20  other areas or may have retired. What is your

         21  experience as to the City replacing the employees

         22  that you represent, the mechanics with respect to

         23  and I'm asking that question with respect to why if

         24  you have an experience workforce. Going back from an

         25  historical perspective where you talked about why

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  civil service was established to get away from

          3  corruption and patronage and contracts and what have

          4  you. Then why would they even consider letting out a

          5  contract when you have this experienced workforce.

          6                 MR. COLANGELO: I'd like the answer to

          7  that question also. Although, I can't give it at

          8  this time. But yes, through the years we've lost

          9  through attrition. I mean, to find out where it

         10  started and what happens in respect to my local is

         11  that over the years when attrition starts to occur,

         12  there is infrequency of examinations.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Infrequency?

         14                 MR. COLANGELO: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 MR. COLANGELO: Correct. So now what

         17  happens is because of that time frame they are

         18  little lacking as far as recruitment goes. And the

         19  exam from my local standpoint of view, the exam for

         20  auto mechanics is not an easy task. And the people

         21  that come to the City of New York in the auto trades

         22  are highly skilled. You have to have five years

         23  experience. We're not talking about journeymen. Then

         24  again, it's not just discussing my local. I mean,

         25  the technical guild that just gave testimony before

                                                            83

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  mine and there is many other unions within DC 37, I

          3  could go on and on and on. I think this issue

          4  affects a lot of different unions.

          5            In my particular case, in my particular

          6  union, did it impact us directly? Absolutely. But I

          7  would say on first look, it probably impacted a lot

          8  of City unions over the years. And attrition is just

          9  one way of saying that oh, gee, we don't have enough

         10  people. Or we don't have enough skilled people. So

         11  we're going to have to look out. We're going to have

         12  to contract out. To just sit here in front of you

         13  and give you examples, I could go on and on and on.

         14  That's a point we are here for. That's to look at

         15  the review and to look at Local Law 35 and to also

         16  see if we can structure it a little bit better.

         17                 But there are also other problems

         18  within the system that affect us all. In particular,

         19  my union because we were affected directly with

         20  outsourcing our work. It pains me because my union

         21  for 53 years has repaired the equipment for the City

         22  of New York. We have a proud heritage with the City.

         23  It hurts when situations like this arise and we're

         24  not given a level playing field so to say.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member
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          2  Addabbo of Queens.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chair. Mr. Colangelo, thank you very much for

          5  your time and testimony today. You heard earlier

          6  testimony where Ms. Simpson who said, there is sort

          7  of a reluctance to notify the unions on certain bids

          8  and certain contracts. What is your opinion about

          9  that?

         10                 MR. COLANGELO: You know, I'm mean I'm

         11  sure that they follow the law when it's in reference

         12  to notifying the unions. As it has been my case that

         13  how we find out early on in the process is through

         14  rumor. We are not notified. The union is not

         15  notified and is not given the proper amount of time

         16  in my case to react when in fact the RFP does come

         17  out. I'm sure and I'm not suggesting that the

         18  Administration is not following the guidelines,

         19  could there be a little more notification to the

         20  unions? Absolutely. For my case, it's always been

         21  that we are sort of like the last to know. We're the

         22  last to know.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: You feel that

         24  you should as well as other unions across the board

         25  should have more of a say in the process?
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          2                 MR. COLANGELO: Absolutely. There are

          3  issues that we can address early on to address any

          4  concerns with any agency as far as the delivery of

          5  services to the citizens of the City of New York.

          6  Given that, I'd just like to state that the

          7  Department of Sanitation, the Auto Mechanics, going

          8  back many years ago, won the Ford Foundation Award

          9  for innovations in government. That's where civil

         10  servants came up with ideas that were instrumental

         11  in helping the City to supply services in that case

         12  was the repair of maintenance of the City sanitation

         13  fleet. We won an award from the Ford Foundation. I

         14  believe it goes back in the early '80's. I can get

         15  the dates for you exactly. But there is a perfect

         16  example of where labor and management working

         17  together can solve the problems whether it be issues

         18  of delivery of services, cost savings for the

         19  agencies. You can go on and on and on. There is many

         20  individuals, many civil servants over the years that

         21  have assisted the City in saving them money by

         22  streamlining maybe some of their operations or

         23  giving them ideas. You could pick a union out of a

         24  hat and I'm sure they've got an example to give you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr.
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          2  Colangelo, in your testimony you had mentioned that

          3  you now Chair a Committee that's looking at

          4  analyzing Local Law 35. As Chair of the Civil

          5  Service and Labor Committee, I would request if you

          6  can just keep me updated on those. This is a major

          7  issue that affects many, many people throughout the

          8  City. I would appreciate any update that you may

          9  have.

         10                 MR. COLANGELO: Absolutely. After our

         11  first meeting, I will send you whatever notes I can.

         12  Absolutely.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you.

         14  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         15                 MR. COLANGELO: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Finally let me

         17  ask, you've heard all of the testimony here today of

         18  Marla Simpson, the Executive Director of the Mayor's

         19  Office of Contracts and other union brothers and

         20  sister testified, what suggestions do you have, if

         21  any, as to what we as the Committee on Contracts

         22  and/or Joe Addabbo who chairs the Civil Service and

         23  Labor Committee or any other committees within the

         24  City Council, what should we be doing in order to

         25  ensure that the effectiveness of Local Law 35 and/or
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          2  other laws that protect the workers of the City of

          3  New York?

          4                 MR. COLANGELO: Well, currently just

          5  by looking at the contracts as they are let, as they

          6  come out, the RFPs, I know that your staff has been

          7  very instrumental in certain situations even

          8  affecting certain contracts that go out. I think

          9  continuing that process in light of there are

         10  changes. I am going to be Chair of this committee, I

         11  would like to get the input of all the labor leaders

         12  of much more expertise than I have. There are

         13  specific issues that relate to directly to me, but I

         14  think that the issue is broader than me. I think it

         15  affects like I said in my statement, there is

         16  300,000 City employees. I think that before I would

         17  give a suggestion today, I would just say to

         18  continue the process the way it now currently is and

         19  moving forward with that, I think in the coming

         20  months, I will have changes that I would suggest on

         21  the behalf of the other unions and the Committee.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: If we can be any

         23  assistance, meaning Contracts or Civil Service and

         24  Labor or any Committee in order to improve Local Law

         25  35 so it is in the best interest of the City of New
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          2  York, then we will assist in doing that. We want a

          3  law that's workable, that protects workers, and also

          4  that's in the best interest of the City of New York.

          5                 MR. COLANGELO: And the citizens of

          6  New York. Absolutely. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

          8  Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chair. Joe, everyone speaks about the attrition

         11  and they use that as a way of saying causing the

         12  City to contract out these things.

         13                 MR. COLANGELO: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And we all

         15  know that City workers they are committed and it's

         16  cheaper to do the job. Having known that, is there

         17  any task force that will look at a situation to say,

         18  well listen, two years ago we used to do this and so

         19  we lost our jobs to do this and the City is now

         20  contracting it out. Is any task force to look at the

         21  cost effectiveness so that at least working along

         22  with the City, we can bring it back and we can hire

         23  these folks within the City?

         24                 MR. COLANGELO: I don't know of any

         25  program or anything currently that does that. But
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          2  what happens more often than not and that's also a

          3  managerial decision is that we do more with less. I

          4  mean civil servants, whether it be police, fire,

          5  sanitation, correction officers. I mean DC 37, I

          6  couldn't list all of those locals. Every City union

          7  in the City has been affected by reduction in staff

          8  levels. Reduction in staffing levels is directed by

          9  management and what happens more often than not is

         10  that in cases that I have been aware of in my union

         11  is that the men just pick up the actual work. And

         12  there is also, there is always a point where safety

         13  becomes a concern in certain jobs. In certain jobs,

         14  there is not.

         15                 In the case let's say in my union

         16  where staffing levels are reduced to the point where

         17  it may create a safety issue, there may be issues

         18  where staffing level reductions within an office

         19  environment creates a work load that one secretary

         20  or that one individual just can't get out from

         21  under. So to individually look at it, I think there

         22  would have to be specific instances and you could

         23  probably look at all the different unions that are

         24  affected. Everyone would probably have a different

         25  story. Currently, is there a task force or currently
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          2  is there something out there that triggers a look at

          3  reduction in staffing level? Not that I'm aware of.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: We have found

          5  ways of dealing with things in terms of safety. We

          6  found a task force to deal with that.

          7                 MR. COLANGELO: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But to me,

          9  this is much more than safety because it affects

         10  safety also. If we had maybe a group, maybe members

         11  from the different unions that are affected in the

         12  sense that would review the different contracts in

         13  terms of how it's being done and look at the cost

         14  effectiveness and then make recommendations back to

         15  the City and say listen, if you rehire because these

         16  contracts are going to come up year after year. This

         17  year they may give out a contract today, this year.

         18  But it may come back next year. You may not be able

         19  to have all the personnel to do that job this year.

         20  But who is to say that you cannot rehire those

         21  people that you fired a year ago if you are going to

         22  have this contract next year.

         23                 If we had a task force or members

         24  from the different unions that are coming together

         25  to review these types of contracts, these
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          2  outsourcing of jobs, looking at that and saying, you

          3  got rid of 25 people from this union which could

          4  have done this job. This job is going to continue.

          5  No longer can you outsource it. You must rehire

          6  those 25 people or get 25 people to be back into the

          7  union to get on doing that.

          8                 MR. COLANGELO: That's a very good

          9  suggestion. You bringing it up and listening to you

         10  speak, I thought about it myself, I think that is

         11  something ideally would be great for any type of

         12  service contract. As far as contracts going whether

         13  buying goods for the City of New York, you couldn't

         14  use that. But I think that any service contract,

         15  that is a great suggestion. Because whenever it

         16  comes to supplying services that the citizens and

         17  the people of the City of New York, that would be

         18  ideal and there are probably other unions I think

         19  would also champion something like that. That's an

         20  excellent idea.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And it might

         22  be an idea that you come up with a way of forming

         23  some kind of legislation to really deal with that.

         24  If you don't do that, it means that every year you

         25  can get rid of ten this year and then you outsource
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          2  and it continues. And it could continue doing that

          3  indefinitely.

          4                 MR. COLANGELO: I think that's one of

          5  the changes even within Local Law 35 would be good

          6  is to look at or review when the contracts are re-

          7  put out. I think that's important and along with

          8  that, that would fill part of that would be any

          9  service contract no matter what that service might

         10  be. You might be able to say that the employees of

         11  the City could do that work if were to hire x amount

         12  of people and we could save the City x amount of

         13  dollars. I think that's a great suggestion.

         14  Absolutely.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The other

         16  thing I wanted to look at is job description for

         17  workers. How definitive is the job description that

         18  you would have people who are qualified in doing the

         19  job and because you want to say, well listen, due to

         20  attrition you may not have all the personnel, but

         21  you may have people there who fit the job

         22  description, be able to that job. But now you have

         23  outsourced it because you may have a bigger job or

         24  you may have much more work to be done.

         25                 MR. COLANGELO: The job descriptions,
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          2  the ones that we are involved in, they are very

          3  broad. I mean in any job description there is some

          4  work that can be done by one group as opposed to

          5  another. There is always a commingling of a certain

          6  amount of work. But when it comes to a contract, I

          7  guess you have to research that. To go through the

          8  job descriptions for the City of New York and

          9  employees of City of New York is hundreds and

         10  hundreds. As in most of them, they are very broad

         11  ranging. There may be pages. Especially in my union,

         12  there is actually pages of stuff for any one

         13  individual title.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I don't want

         15  to get in the point where they say listen you don't

         16  have people who are qualified or people who can do

         17  the job. Or you have enough people because what is

         18  happening here is if you get rid of a few, you can

         19  say, listen well we don't have enough. The people

         20  who remain in there, they can do the job, but you

         21  may need to rehire some folks to do the job maybe at

         22  a different level.

         23                 MR. COLANGELO: That's always been the

         24  case as far civil servants goes is making that

         25  suggestion. We would never sit here and say to you
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          2  or I would never personally say, we have to hire 100

          3  people because we have a disaster and we have to

          4  clean up. What are we going to do with these 100

          5  people after the disaster is over with? But I think

          6  that looking at staffing levels as the agency moves

          7  forward especially when there is outside contracts

          8  that can be done by the in- house staff, there might

          9  be areas where you could say, if we hire three more

         10  people you could do this work in- house and you

         11  could get rid of that contract something that is

         12  recurring year and year after year. That's something

         13  that has to be looked at on an individual one on one

         14  basis as these contracts come up. Just to let these

         15  contracts be renewed and not being looked at, I

         16  think that is part of the problem. That is

         17  definitely part of the problem.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: The other

         19  question I have which may all tie into this is the

         20  civil service test having people that you considered

         21  qualified. If you don't give them the test and if

         22  you don't qualify them and you have an attrition,

         23  eventually you're going to deplete the entire work

         24  force. What can we do to make sure that the test is

         25  given on a timely, regular manner?
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          2                 MR. COLANGELO: The unions do have

          3  whenever there is provisionals within the specific

          4  title over a certain period of time we can request

          5  from the City of New York that at test be given for

          6  that specific title. Because they are short staffed,

          7  because putting a test together is not something

          8  that is easily done. That all seems to fall on the

          9  back burner. I mean that's just the way it is.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Then there

         11  should be something done about that. That is a way

         12  of finding an excuse and say listen, we don't have

         13  people who are qualified. You wouldn't say they're

         14  not qualified if you didn't -- no one knows when

         15  they are going to take the test and they may not be

         16  prepared to take the test or they might be qualified

         17  and they just haven't taken the test.

         18                 MR. COLANGELO: I guess it is because

         19  they got short staffing down there where they send

         20  the test out.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you for

         22  your testimony. Thank you very much.

         23                 MR. COLANGELO: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And finally,

         25  Council Member Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair. I just find your testimony very compelling

          4  because it really brings into question a number of

          5  areas. One, the undermining of the civil service

          6  system. But two, how do we go about leveling the

          7  playing field with respect to qualified workers in

          8  the reinforcement of our City's workforce. It's good

          9  that we had my colleague, Joe Addabbo, here because

         10  I'm sure this is an area that's intriguing him.

         11                 I wanted to ask just a question in

         12  terms of how we can package this to really address

         13  this imbalance. I consider it imbalance because at

         14  any point in time if the City is infrequently having

         15  civil service examinations for these titles, this is

         16  something that is a slippery slope. I wanted to ask

         17  whether as a union any of this is negotiated through

         18  your contracts. Because often times when we try to

         19  come to resolution here at the Council in terms of

         20  our municipal workforce, we're told hands off,

         21  that's a labor negotiation matter.

         22                 I think we can certainly review

         23  what's happening with respect to civil service,

         24  frequency of testing, and maintaining of a healthy

         25  list of qualified individuals. I think that's
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          2  something that we can certainly reflect upon. But I

          3  think one of the things that we must do is work in

          4  concert with labor so that as you proceed with the

          5  negotiations, anything that we would do to

          6  strengthen or bolster you here is not interfering or

          7  in any way counteractive to a negotiation that you

          8  may have for maintaining what you currently have as

          9  a workforce. Do you have any --

         10                 MR. COLANGELO: I understand your

         11  question. With respect to staffing levels, that's a

         12  managerial decision. We could always make the

         13  argument that there are cases out there where

         14  clearly the City should hire more people. But then

         15  again, there are cases out there where the City's

         16  argument would be that we have to reduce staffing

         17  levels. Is that a point of negotiation? I guess we

         18  could argue that on both sides. I guess the City

         19  would argue it from their side that it's a

         20  managerial issue and that they have the right and

         21  the commission has the right to set staffing levels.

         22  I think on the unions point of view, we could argue

         23  that certain staffing levels are required to do

         24  certain specific jobs. That's something, I

         25  understand your question, but how to address it
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          2  specifically, that's a good one. That's something

          3  myself would have to look into.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Exactly.

          5  That's what I just wanted to bring to your attention

          6  because I think a lot of this can be addressed

          7  through a concerted effort.

          8                 MR. COLANGELO: Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Certainly the

         10  Administration has shown over time that it has a

         11  preference for privatizing. I've certainly in my

         12  tenure here have witnessed many occasions already

         13  where the qualified personnel that we have within

         14  our City and not necessarily encouraged through

         15  civil service to become a part of that workforce.

         16  That will get the job done or maintaining the

         17  current work force to make sure that the job can be

         18  done. And one of the things that I wanted to ask is

         19  you established this committee to analyze the local

         20  law that you take into account some of these other

         21  factors that we've looked at. Because that attrition

         22  piece will always be a loophole.

         23                 MR. COLANGELO: Always.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: It will be

         25  always be a loop hole. Management, that is something
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          2  they have a hold on. And so to the extent that we

          3  can establish a case for making sure that we can

          4  come up with a more modernize system for civil

          5  service to thrive in our City, you can be helpful

          6  there. You are the folks on the ground with the

          7  membership that understands how this is done. Then

          8  for us, now we need to look at what that formula

          9  looks like so that we can be supportive on this end

         10  to uphold that and to really point to that and bring

         11  it to light for the City.

         12                 I would suggest humbly, that as you

         13  establish this Committee, begin to look at that

         14  paradigm as well. It's very clear to me that it's

         15  simply a lot easier to claim that we can't afford to

         16  hold a civil service exam for this title because

         17  it's never really in demand. We get a million

         18  stories. But we know that if they ran the exam, it

         19  would be cheaper to hold the exam, hire up the

         20  people than it is that is costing us to do these

         21  contracts. That's simply my request. Council Member

         22  Addabbo, you have a juicy one here. Thank you. Thank

         23  you, Mr. Chair.

         24                 MR. COLANGELO: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. I

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  want to thank you for coming in. At this point in

          3  time, this hearing is adjourned.

          4                 MR. COLANGELO: Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:20 p.m.)
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